
City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners
Minutes of May 19, 2009

Page 1 of 8
The Mandan City Commission met in regular session at 5:39 p.m. on May 19,

2009 in the Ed “Bosh” Froehlich Room at City Hall. Commissioners present were
Helbling, Tibke, Jackson, and Serhienko.  Department Heads present were Finance
Director Welch, City Attorney Brown, City Administrator Neubauer, Fire Chief Nardello,
Planner Baehurst, Engineering Project Manager Bechtel, City Assessor Barta, Director of
Public Works Wright and Police Chief Bullinger.   Commissioner Gangl and Business
Development Director Huber were absent.

MINUTES:
1.           Consider approval of minutes from the following meeting:  May 5, 2009.
Commissioner Serhienko moved to approve the minutes as presented for May 5, 2009.
Commissioner Jackson seconded the motion.  The motion received unanimous approval
of the members present.

PUBLIC HEARING:
1.           Public Hearing for Ad Valorem application for Captain Freddy’s Inc.; aka
parcel #10019-A at 2500 Pirate’s Loop SE on Lot A of Lot 55, Blk. 1, Bridgeview Bay
Addition. City Assessor Richard Barta presented a request for Ad Valorem application
for Captain Freddy’s Inc.; aka parcel #10019-A.  Barta stated there has been no
opposition either written or verbal to the request for exemption.  Mr. Barta stated that the
Park District, the School District and the county have all been notified.

Mayor Helbling stated that this is a public hearing and opened the floor for comments.

Susan Beehler, a Mandan resident and business owner came forward to speak.  She stated
that she is in protest to this project, not necessarily against the business, but the way the
City is setting policy and giving out the tax exemptions.  She stated that the NDEA has
voiced concern regarding tax exemptions and how that process is affecting the schools.

Kirsten Baesler, came forward and introduced herself as an educator and a member of the
Mandan School Board.  She stated she would like to address the NDEA concern, stating
that it is true that there are some areas of this country that randomly approve tax
exemptions and it is causing stress in some of the communities.  Some of the problems
that have been seen regarding how tax exemptions have created problems within the
school district is that areas have experienced additional enrollment in their school district.
The school district is expected to educate the children, thereby increasing costs for
additional students, and subsequently the business may fold.  If that would be the case,
the students would still be in the district and the burden would still be on the school to
provide education.  Baesler stated that is not the case in Mandan.  She clarified that the
Mandan School District, at this time, is not upset or in opposition to any of these tax
exemptions.  She stated that the School District Administration has been informed and
they do not have any protest against these projects.

Mayor Helbling stated that all three entities have been informed and asked for their input.
He asked for further comments from the public.  Mr. Barta commented that the sales
taxes collected as a result of this project could be considered as an offset to the tax

DocumentsPDF
Complete

Click Here & Upgrade
Expanded Features

Unlimited Pages

http://www.pdfcomplete.com/1002/2001/upgrade.htm


City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners
Minutes of May 19, 2009

Page 2 of 8
exemption given.  Hearing no further comments, Mayor Helbling closed this portion of
the public hearing.

Commissioner Jackson commented that he is aware of the property tax exemption
concerns.  He encouraged the Commission to continue moving forward in the way they
have been doing until the full study is presented.

Commissioner Tibke commented that an online survey has been conducted and some of
the services the citizens want are more choices for food – this will be a restaurant and bar
and it will provide additional choices for dining out.

Commissioner Jackson moved to approve the Ad Valorem application for Captain
Freddy’s Inc.; aka parcel #10019-A at 2500 Pirate’s Loop SE on Lot A of Lot 55, Blk. 1,
Bridgeview Bay Addition.  Commissioner Tibke seconded the motion.  The motion
received unanimous approval of the members present.

2.          Public Hearing for Ad Valorem Tax Exemption for North Central Regional
Processing Center (NCPRC); aka Parcel #7376 at 3321 Nygren Dr. NW in the Mandan
Industrial Park 3rd Addition.  City Assessor Richard Barta presented a request for the Ad
Valorem Tax Exemption for North Central Regional Processing Center (NCPRC).  Barta
stated there has been no opposition either written or verbal to the request for exemption.
Barta recommended approval for the tax exemption at 100%.  Mr. Barta stated that the
Park District, the School District and the County have all been notified.  This is the NISC
Project.  City Attorney Brown noted for informational purposes, that this is an application
requested by the tenant which is permitted under state law as long as they do not occupy
the premises prior to the granting of exemption if the Board wishes to do it.  Brown stated
he has examined the Lease between the two parties and it is what would be called a
“triple-net lease” wherein the tenant is obligated to pay the taxes so the relief granted in
the exemption does flow through to the applicant.  Mr. Barta stated that it will be 2-3
weeks before the building is completed – they have not moved into the building.

Mayor Helbling stated that this is a public hearing and opened the floor for comments.

Susan Beehler, a Mandan resident business owner came forward to speak.  She stated that
this matter was before this Board earlier this year and that she had questioned the
procedure of the way the five-year tax exemptions are held.  She inquired if it now is a
tenant tax exemption?  She stated she understood the five-year tax exemption was to be
requested prior to building (corrected by City Attorney Brown to be:  prior to
occupancy).  She commented that from the tax equalization, there are 80% residents and
20% are commercial.  However, she said that when looking at the tax exemptions the tax
exemptions are given to the commercial over residential.  It was a total of $600,000.  She
inquired if this is only the taxes on the property?  Are the land, not the actual structure?
Mr. Barta replied that the land is taxed.  The only exemption is the building.  She
inquired if no taxes have to be paid for five years on the building?  Mayor Helbling
responded that is correct.  Beehler stated that she is protesting this stating that as a
business owner it is unfair because of the dollar that comes out of anybody’s pocket can

DocumentsPDF
Complete

Click Here & Upgrade
Expanded Features

Unlimited Pages

http://www.pdfcomplete.com/1002/2001/upgrade.htm


City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners
Minutes of May 19, 2009

Page 3 of 8
be spent at any business location within our city and they have first rights to that tax
dollar.  She stated that she thinks this is an unfair way of handling things in Mandan.  She
stated she believes there should be claw back and expectation.  She stated that she
protests this project.

Mayor Helbling stated that all three entities have been informed and asked for their input.
He asked for further comments from the public.  Mr. Barta commented that this project
will bring a lot of people into Mandan.  Hearing no further comments, Mayor Helbling
closed this portion of the public hearing.

Commissioner Serhienko commented that he agrees there is some deficiency in how the
tax exemption is applied.  He stated that he has been in touch with city officials and they
are looking at what the state is doing and what will benefit the City of Mandan while at
the same time not penalize an employer (such as NISC who will employ 70-80 people).
Serhienko reiterated that the process is currently being researched.

Commissioner Jackson commented that the matter is being looked at.  He stated that
preliminary report is that Development Director is reviewing what other cities in North
Dakota do for tax exemptions who would be in a similar situation.  Mandan is somewhat
unique in that it has a sister city in competition.  He stated that this employer will bring in
a significant amount of payroll and business to Mandan, and in the same case scenario in
other cities, it would be supported in a similar manner that Mandan is doing.  He stated
that given the number of employees that will be spending dollars in the city of Mandan,
will of course benefit Mandan and ultimately reduce property taxes which is the entire
goal.  Commissioner Jackson stated he does not see a downside to bringing that many
more people into this community

Commissioner Jackson moved to approve the Ad Valorem Tax Exemption for North
Central Regional Processing Center (NCPRC); aka Parcel #7376 at 3321 Nygren Dr. NW
in the Mandan Industrial Park 3rd Addition.  Commissioner Serhienko seconded the
motion.  The motion received unanimous approval of the members present.

BIDS:

CONSENT AGENDA:
1.          Consider entering into an agreement with ND Youth Correctional Center for
winter snow removal.  The Commission approved of entering into an agreement with ND
Youth Correctional Center for winter snow removal.
2.          Consider a request to close Main Street on August 22nd for use by the ND Harley
Owners Group. The Commission approved a request to close Main Street on August 22nd

for use by the ND Harley Owners Group.
3.          Consider entering into a Cost Participation and Maintenance Agreement with the
NDDOT for the proposed stimulus projects. The Commission approved entering into a
Cost Participation and Maintenance Agreement with the NDDOT for the proposed
stimulus projects.
4.          Consider approval of beer garden and street dance applications for:

DocumentsPDF
Complete

Click Here & Upgrade
Expanded Features

Unlimited Pages

http://www.pdfcomplete.com/1002/2001/upgrade.htm


City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners
Minutes of May 19, 2009

Page 4 of 8
             i.     Westside Bar & Grill on June 26 & 67
             ii.    Silver Dollar Bar on June 5&6, July 2-4, and August 21&22
             iii.   Crying Hill Promotions on July 3
The Commission approved of beer garden and street dance applications for:  (i) Westside
Bar & Grill on June 26 & 27; (ii) Silver Dollar Bar on June 5&6, July 2-4, and August
21&22; (iii) Crying Hill Promotions on July 3.
5.          Consider approval of proclaiming June 7-13, 2009 Management Week.  The
Commission approved of proclaiming June 7-13, 2009 Management Week.
6.          Consider approval of proclaiming September 1-4, 2009 Homeless and Near
Homeless Awareness Week.  The Commission approved of proclaiming September 1-4,
2009 Homeless and Near Homeless Awareness Week.
7.          Consider approval of the following Abatement:
             i.     Dorothy Stockman - 2-year Exemption for new construction
The Commission approved of the following abatement: Dorothy Stockman - 2-year
Exemption for new construction.
8.          Consider approval of monthly bills. The Commission approved of the monthly
bills.

Commissioner Tibke moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  Commissioner
Jackson seconded the motion with the correction noted @ No. 4(i) that it should be June
27, and not June 67.  The motion received unanimous approval of the members present.

OLD BUSINESS:

NEW BUSINESS:
1.          Consider Mandan Progress Organization Funding Committee recommendations.
Del Wetsch, Director of the Mandan Progress Organization Committee, provided the
Commission with the criteria developed and followed by the MPO for consideration and
the granting of funding requests.  He stated that 19 applications have met the criteria for
request for monies from the advertising budget.  He stated that 50% of the monies are
allocated in Mandan Bucks and 50% in the form of checks from the City of Mandan.
Wetsch stated that the MPO recommended $20,000 in funding to the 19 applicants.
Wetsch stated that the City sets aside $20,000 annually for the funding of these events.
He stated there is a deadline set in May of each year at which time the MPO Board
reviews the requests and then presents the recommendations to the Commission.

Commissioner Serhienko commented that the Mandan Progress Organization is a very
admirable program.  Wetsch commented that the monies are spent locally so the dollars
are going back into the community.

Susan Beehler, a Mandan City resident came forward to speak.  She commented that
previously there was discussion about email notifications regarding Mandan City
meetings and that she was to get notices of meetings that she was legally entitled to.  She
stated she did not get notice of this (MPO) meeting.  She stated that she believes that
since the money was allotted to the MPO and delegation was given to them to determine
what to do with the money, Beehler feels she should have received notice of the meeting.

DocumentsPDF
Complete

Click Here & Upgrade
Expanded Features

Unlimited Pages

http://www.pdfcomplete.com/1002/2001/upgrade.htm


City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners
Minutes of May 19, 2009

Page 5 of 8
City Attorney Brown commented that it is not clear that the Mandan Progress
Organization is a “unit of government” such that it has to give notice of its meeting, and
in particular, to Ms. Beehler.  It is a fact that the MPO is delegated authority to suggest
ways the City can spend money, but in the end it is the City Commission’s decision to
spend money or not spend money.  Brown is unclear whether or not the meetings where
these discussions are taking place to formulate the recommendations is in fact a public
meeting.  The ultimate authority is with the City Commission, both with the budget
process and authorization to spend the money.  Mayor Helbling commented that he
agreed with Attorney Brown and this is the public hearing for this process.  He suggested
this is a conversation that will have to happen with the Attorney General’s office.

Commissioner Jackson inquired of Ms. Beehler if she has objections to any of these
organizations getting the funding?  Ms. Beehler stated she does not have a problem with
them getting the funding.  She commented that the taxpayers have a right to know where
the money is going.  She stated she has a problem with you (the Commission) publicly
saying notices be required.

Mayor Helbling stated that the City will look into this concern.  Commissioner Jackson
suggested to the city staff (Administrator Neubauer) – that until we get direction on what
committees and what meetings and which people have to be advised of those, that no
voluntary committee notices be sent.

City Administrator Neubauer stated that the funding committee that Mr. Wetsch is
referring to is a committee of the Mandan Progress Organization (MPO).  The MPO is a
separate entity.  The MPO Funding Committee submits recommendations to the MPO
Board and in turn a recommendation comes to the City Commission for its final
consideration.  Commissioner Serhienko stated that the notification concerns are
currently being researched and in the meantime he recommends that notices be sent.

Commissioner Serhienko motioned to approve the Mandan Progress Organization
Funding Committee recommendations.  Commissioner Jackson seconded the motion.

Commissioner Jackson inquired of Mr. Wetsch of the ND H. O. G. Rally, an applicant on
the list.  Wetsch responded that is a new application received.  It is an event similar to the
Wild West Bike Fest that was held previously.   There will not be any further requests in
the fall of 2009 as they are included in this listing.

Mayor Helbling announced there has been a motion and second on this matter and called
for a vote: The motion received unanimous approval of the members present.

2.          Consider the annexation of Lot 1, Block 3, Bahm’s 1st Addition (See Ordinance
1056).  Sarah BaeHurst, Planner, requested consideration of the annexation of Lot 1,
Block 3, Bahm’s 1st Addition (See Ordinance 1056).  She stated that the owner
approached the City with a petition for annexation.  There is no public hearing required.
(See Resolutions and Ordinance No. 1056 for action on this matter.)

DocumentsPDF
Complete

Click Here & Upgrade
Expanded Features

Unlimited Pages

http://www.pdfcomplete.com/1002/2001/upgrade.htm


City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners
Minutes of May 19, 2009

Page 6 of 8
3.          Consider recommendation from Mandan Visitors Committee for funding
assistance related to a multiuse path adjacent to I-94, Collins Ave to Mandan Ave.
City Administrator Neubauer reviewed with the Board a recommendation from the
Mandan Visitor’s Committee to consider a request from the Mandan Park District for
funding assistance for a multiuse path adjacent to I-94 Collins Avenue to Mandan
Avenue.  The money requested is due to the proposed vacation and relocation of the
existing Old Red Trail.  Additional engineering costs have been incurred due to the
revised location.  Neubauer stated that the Visitor’s Committee supported the funding
request for this project.  The State has approved of this re-alignment.  The Park District
feels that this is a better fit also.

Commissioner Jackson declared that he has two brothers that work for Kadrmas, Lee and
Jackson, the engineers who did the work on this project however, that does not impact his
voting on this matter.

Commissioner Serhienko moved to approve the recommendation from Mandan Visitors
Committee for funding assistance related to a multiuse path adjacent to I-94, Collins Ave
to Mandan Ave.  Commissioner Jackson seconded the motion.

4.          Consider for approval, a number of requests submitted by the Rodeo Days
Committee for activities over the 4th of July. Del Wetsch of the Mandan Progress
Organization presented a list of requests (1-10) of upcoming activities by the Rodeo Days
Committee.  However, he stated that No. 7 should be removed.  He stated that an attempt
was made to have the first ever marathon run in Mandan, however, that will not happen
this year so this request is being removed from the list. Wetsch stated that before the 4th

of July parade; there will be a ribbon cutting activity on the Old Red/Old 10 Scenic
Byway that is being designated.  It is North Dakota’s newest scenic byway.  There will be
a ribbon cutting at the Art and Park in the morning.  After the ribbon cutting, there will be
an old car show.  Mandan will have its first Independence Day festival.  A street festival
is also being planned on the 4th of July so there is a request that no traffic be allowed on
the street for the festivities planned.  Mayor Helbling stated that these requests have gone
through all the proper committees for review and approval.

Commissioner Serhienko moved to approve the requests submitted by the Rodeo Days
Committee for activities over the 4th of July as outlined by the Mandan Progress
Organization.

RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES:
1.          Introduction and first reading of Ordinance 1054 An ordinance to amend and
reenact section 21-03-02 of the Mandan Municipal Code relating to district boundaries
and zoning map. (Lot 7-12, Block 35 and Lots 1-6, Block 36, Mandan Proper in the City
of Mandan.).  City Attorney Brown stated that this is related to the CAB building area
that was discussed at the last meeting.  Commissioner Tibke moved to approve the
introduction and first reading of Ordinance 1054.  Commissioner Serhienko seconded the
motion. The motion received unanimous approval of the members present.

DocumentsPDF
Complete

Click Here & Upgrade
Expanded Features

Unlimited Pages

http://www.pdfcomplete.com/1002/2001/upgrade.htm


City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners
Minutes of May 19, 2009

Page 7 of 8
2.          Introduction and first reading of Ordinance 1055 An ordinance to amend and
reenact section 21-03-02 of the Mandan Municipal Code relating to district boundaries
and zoning map. (Lots 1-4 of Patti’s Acres in the City of Mandan.).  City Attorney Brown
stated this is the area north of Seven Seas.  The City owns the lots and re-zoning was
necessary in order to reconstruct and enlarge the radio transmission tower that’s up there.
Commissioner Tibke moved to approve the introduction and first reading of Ordinance
1055.  Commissioner Serhienko seconded the motion. The motion received unanimous
approval of the members present.

3.          Introduction and first reading of Ordinance 1056  An ordinance annexing certain
adjoining lands to the City of Mandan, North Dakota, and extending the corporate
boundaries thereof.  (Lot 1, Block 3, Bahm’s 1st Addition.)  Commissioner Tibke moved
to approve the Introduction and first reading of Ordinance 1056.  Commissioner Jackson
seconded the motion.  The motion received unanimous approval of the members present.

4. Consider introduction and first reading of Ordinance 1053 An Ordinance to
repeal Chapters 13-19 And 13-20 relating To Taxicabs And Taxicab Drivers and enact a
new Chapter 13-19 of The Mandan Code of Ordinances. City Attorney Brown stated that
this matter is related to coordinating the Mandan City Code Ordinance in alignment with
the Bismarck City Code Ordinance.  This will serve as reciprocity between the two cities
with the taxicab business.  Attorney Brown stated that Bismarck had their first reading
last week of their Ordinance.  Commissioner Tibke moved to approve the Introduction
and first reading of Ordinance 1053.  Commissioner Jackson seconded the motion.  The
motion received unanimous approval of the members present.

5.          Consider introduction and first reading of Ordinance 1057 an ordinance to
amend and reenact subsection 1 of section 21-01-06 of the Mandan Municipal Code
relating to the time of meetings for the Planning and Zoning Commission.  City Attorney
Brown stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission has always met on Mondays.
The School Board will now be using this facility on Mondays during the month. The
Planning and Zoning Commission have recommended moving their meetings to the first
and third Thursdays of each month.  The Ordinance will need to be changed in order to
authorize them to meet on Thursdays.  Commissioner Tibke moved to approve the
Introduction and first reading of Ordinance 1057.  Commissioner Serhienko seconded the
motion.  The motion received unanimous approval of the members present.

OTHER BUSINESS:
1.          Update on remediation project by Leggette, Brashears & Graham
Tim Kenyon, Leggette, Brashears & Graham, provided the Commission with an update
on the remediation project.  He said that over 1.57 million pounds of hydrocarbons have
been extracted out of the ground since the beginning of the project.  There has been over
40,000 gallons of diesel fuel removed.  The system is doing what it should be doing and
progress is being made as expected.  Kenyon stated the coming up in the future will be
remediation of Main Street with plans to start on or about July 7th.   Mr. Kenyon said that
he will provide a more detailed report at a later time.

DocumentsPDF
Complete

Click Here & Upgrade
Expanded Features

Unlimited Pages

http://www.pdfcomplete.com/1002/2001/upgrade.htm


City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners
Minutes of May 19, 2009

Page 8 of 8
2.          City Administrator Neubauer stated that the Commission meetings are held on
the first and third Tuesdays of the month pursuant to City Ordinance.  In addition,
meetings can be scheduled for the fifth Tuesday of the month, if needed.  The Ordinance
says the meetings will be held on the first and third Tuesdays of the month and if there is
to be a meeting on June 30th, administration and staff need to know in advance in order to
provide public notices accordingly.  Commissioner Jackson commented that due to the 4th

of July holiday/activities planned, it would be advisable to hold a meeting on June 30th.

Commissioner Tibke moved to approve the scheduling of a meeting on June 30, 2009, at
5:30 p.m.  Commissioner Jackson seconded the motion.  The motion received unanimous
approval of the members present.

There being no further actions to come before the Board, Commissioner Jackson moved
to adjourn the meeting at 6:41 p.m.  Commissioner Serhienko seconded the motion.
Upon roll call vote, the motion received unanimous approval of the Board and the
meeting adjourned.

/s/ James Neubauer /s/ Timothy A. Helbling
James Neubauer,
City Administrator

Timothy A. Helbling,
President, Board of City
Commissioners

DocumentsPDF
Complete

Click Here & Upgrade
Expanded Features

Unlimited Pages

http://www.pdfcomplete.com/1002/2001/upgrade.htm

